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EDMUND G. BROWN JR.

+ Attorney General of California

ARTHUR D. TAGGART
Supervising Deputy Attornéy General
KAREN R. DENVIR s
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 197268 -
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone: (916) 324-5333
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE

. BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

FRANCES IRENE HABIG

AKA FRANCES IRENE FISHER
19134 TROPICAL DRIVE '
MODESTO, CA 95350

~

" ORIGINAL PHARMACY TECHNICIAN

REGISTRATION NUMBER TCH 45006

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:

| CaseNo. 3373

|{ACCUSATION

PARTIES

1.  Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity

“as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs.

2. Onorabout October 22, 2002, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician

Registration Number TCH 45006 to Frances Irene Habig (Respondent). The Pharmacy

Technician Registration was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought

herein and will expire on May 31, 2010, unless renewed.
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J.URISDICTION(

3. This Accusat'i_onﬁis brought b'efore. -fhe Board of Pharmacy (Boardj, Department of
Consumer Affairs, under the authoritybf the following laws. All section references are to the
Business and Professions "C‘.‘c;dé unléss cherwise indicated.

4.  Section 4300 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked. .

(b) The board shall discipline the holdér of any license issued by the board, whose
default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by any of
the following methods: '

(1) Suspending judgment.

(2) Placing him or her upon probation.

(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a period not exceeding one year. :

(4) Revoking his or her license.

‘(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the bbard inits
discretion may deem proper. | |

5. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

The board shall ftake action against any holder of a license who is gﬁilty of
unprofessionél conduct of whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or
issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduét shéll include, but is not limited to, any of the

following:

(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or otherwise, and

whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. .

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any
dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or

injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to
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the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to coriduct with safety to

the public the practice authorized by the license. .

(§) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13
(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled -
substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regufating controlled substances.or
dangerous drugs shall be concluswe evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the
record of conviction shall be concluswe evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred

The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order

to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances

or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the
qualiﬁcati‘ons functions, and duﬁes of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or
a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed tobea conv1ct10n within the meaning
of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made
suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of
the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not

guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or

‘indictment.

(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting
the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.
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(p) Actions or conduct that would have warranted denial of a license.
6.  Section 475 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisibns of this"code, the prox—/isi'ons of this division shall -

~govern the denial of licenses on the grounds of:

(2) Conviction of a crime.
(3) Commission of any act involving dishonesty, fraud or deceit with the intent to
substaﬁtially benéﬁt himself or another, or substantially injure another.
- (4) Commission of 'any act which, if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in |
question, would be groﬁnds for suspension or revocation of license.
7. Section 490 éf the Code states, in pertinent part (emphasis added):

(a) In addition to any other action that a board is permitted to take against a licensee,
a board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a
crime, if the crime is substantially relatédv to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business
or profession for which the license was issued. |

- (b) Notwithstanding any other provision of 1aW, a board maylexercise any authority to
discipline a licensee for conviction éf .a cﬁme that is independent of the authority granted under
subdivision (a) only if the cﬁme is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties
o‘f the business or profession for which the licensee's license was issued.

(c) A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty
or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere. Any action that a board is permitted to take -
follbwing the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or|-
the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appéal, or when an order granting probation is
ﬁade suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under. the
provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code. '
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8. S:ection- 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, fhat the Board may reqﬁest the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the lieensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigatioa and
enforcement of the casei( |

- 9. Section 118, subdivision (b), ef the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the
expiration of a license shall not deprive the Board/Registrar/Director of jurisdiction to proceed
with a disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored,
reissued or reinstated.

| DRUGS

10.  “Vicodin” and "Norco" are brand naraee for hydrocodone with acetaminophen, a
Schedule Il controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11056(e)(4).

11. “Xanax” is a brand name for alprazolam a Schedule IV controlled substance as
designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057(d)(1). |

| OTHER MATTERS

12.  Federal law prohibits a pharmacy from employing any person who has been

convicted of a felony offense relating to controlled substances. (21 C.F.R. § 1301.76)

FIRST CAUSE FOR DIISl'CI'PLINE
(Conviction of a Crime)

13. Respondent is subJ ect to disciplinary actlon under section 490 and 4301, subdivision:
(1), in that she was convicted of a crime substant1ally related to the practice of a pharmacy
teehn101an The circumstances are as s follows:

14. On or about September 9, 2008, in People v. Frances Irene Habzg (Super. Ct.
Stanislaus County, 2008, No. 124508), Respondent was convicted on her plea of guilty to a
felony count of violation of Health and Safet'}} Code section 11350(a) (possession of a controlled
substance) and a felony count of violation of Penal Code section 508 (embezzlement)..
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

* (Acts Involving Morél Turpitude)

15. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 , subdivision ®, iﬁ
that she committed acts invqlving morad fﬁrpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or corruption. |
Specifically, during at le_as_f May of 2008 and June of 2008, and per her admissions, on multiple
occasions, all the exact dates of which are'unkndwn, Ms. Habig fraudulently appropriatéd tablets
of hydrocodone-containing medications, as well as tablets of alprazolam, from Longs.of Modesto,
while on duty és a regisfered pharmacy technician. Respondent admitted to stealing betweeﬁ 180

and 240 tablets of hydrocodone-containing medications, as well as an unknown number of tablets |

- of alprazolam. Based on the drug counts done by Longs, the amount of stolen medication is

believed to be 1033 tablets of hydrocodone-containing medications, and 34 tablets of alprazolam. |

 THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unlawful Self-Administration of a Controlled Substance)

16.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (h) in
tﬁat during at least Méy of 2008 and June of 2008, per her admissions, on multiple occaéioris she
unlawfully self—administergd hydrocodone-containing medications, which afe controlled |
substances. |

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violation of State/Fedéral_ Statute Regulating Controlled Substances)

17. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (j), in

that she violated the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.
vAs set forth above in paragraphs 14 through 16, Respondent was in violation of Health and Safety
Code section 1 1350(a).

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Actions or Conduct Warranting Denial of License)
18. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (p) in
that she committed an act that would have warranted denial of a license, as set forth more fully

above in paragraphs 14 through 16.
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- PRAYER

WHEREFORE,- Comnl_ainant requests that a heanng be held on thé matters herein alleged,.
and that following the hearing, the Bpard of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1.  Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Registration Number TCH 45006,
issued to Frances Irene Habig. |

2. | Ordering Frénces Irene Habig to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of -
the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
125.3;_

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

ROLD !
- Executive Officer
Board of‘Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant
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